

Wiltshire Council Constitution Protocol 2 Terms of Reference of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and Local Pension Board

Contents

Protocol 2A: Terms of Reference of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee

11. 12.	Interpretations Statement of Purpose Duties of the Committee Membership Recruitment process and term lengths Appointment of Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Substitute Members Notification of Appointment Duties of the Chair Meetings Quorum Functions of the Committee	3 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7
	<u>Delegations</u> Reporting	7 7
Protocol 2B: Terms of Reference of the Local Pension Board of Wiltshire Council		
1.	Introduction	8
2.	Interpretations Otata manufact Promotes and a few seconds are a few seconds and a fe	8
3.	Statement of Purpose Disting of the Regard	9
4. -	Duties of the Board	9
5.	Establishment Membership	9
6. 7.	Membership Member representatives	9 9
7. 8.	Member representatives Appointment of Chair	12
9.	Duties of the Chair	13
	Independent governance adviser	13
	Notification of Appointments	13
	Terms of Office	13
	Conflicts of Interest	14
	Knowledge and understanding (including training)	14
	Meetings	14
	Quorum	15
	Board Administration	15
	Public Access to Board meetings and information	15
	Expenses and Allowances	16
	Budget	17
	Functions	17
22.	Reporting	18
23.	Review of Terms of Reference	19

PROTOCOL 2A: TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

1. Introduction

- 1.1 This document sets out the terms of reference of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee of Wiltshire Council (the "Administering Authority") being the scheme manager as defined under Section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.
- 1.2 The Committee is constituted as a Committee of the Administering Authority under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 and has been assigned general duties, responsibilities and powers assigned to any sub-committees or officers under Wiltshire Council's constitution.

2. Interpretations

- 2.1 The following terms have meanings as outlined below:
 - 2.1.1 'the Regulations' means the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended from time to time), the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended from time to time) including any earlier regulations as defined in these regulations to the extent they remain applicable and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended from time to time):
 - 2.1.2 **'Relevant Legislation'** means relevant overriding legislation as well as the Pension Regulator's Codes of Practice as they apply to the Administering Authority notwithstanding that the Codes of Practice are not legislation;
 - 2.1.3 **'the Scheme**' means the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales:
 - 2.1.4 **'Pension Fund Officers'** shall mean the Director, Finance and Procurement (s.151 Officer), and Head of Wiltshire Pension Fund, as appropriate for the context, in line with their general roles and responsibilities;
 - 2.1.5 'the Board' means the Local Pension Board established under Section 5 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and regulation 106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) and as set out in Protocol 2B of this constitution; and
 - 2.1.6 **'Treasurer of the Fund'** shall mean the Director, Finance and Procurement, or nominee where any conflict may arise.

3. Statement of purpose

3.1 The Committee is to act on behalf of the Administering Authority in its role as a scheme manager of the Scheme.

3.2 ln particular:

3.2.1 To have full decision-making responsibility on all aspects of the administration and management of the pension fund;

- 3.2.2 The power to delegate Pension Fund functions to Pension Fund officers and other service areas within the Administering Authority as the Committee may consider appropriate to ensure the smooth administration of the Pension Fund having regard to the Scheme of Delegation to Officers as set out in Part 3D of the Wiltshire Council Constitution;
- 3.2.3 the Committee shall work with the Board considering all their recommendations and determine any appropriate action(s) to be taken, or provide a reason to the Board for not enacting a recommendation made by them; and
- 3.2.4 maintain a business plan and other key Wiltshire Pension Fund documents such as the Governance Compliance Statement, Funding Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy Statement to facilitate the delegation to officers of key strategic functions of the Scheme.

4. Duties of the Committee

4.1 The Committee should at all times act in a reasonable manner in the conduct of its purpose. In support of this duty all Committee members shall make declarations on the register of interests of the Administering Authority in accordance with its Code of Conduct.

5. Membership

- 5.1 The Chairman appointed under Paragraph 7 should be a Member of the Administering Authority.
- 5.2 Committee membership may be terminated prior to the end of the Member's term of office if:
 - 5.2.1 there exists a conflict of interest in relation to a Committee member which cannot be managed within the internal procedures of the Committee;
 - 5.2.2 a Committee member becomes incapable of acting;
 - 5.2.3 a member representative ceases to be a member of the body or scheme on which their appointment relied;
 - 5.2.4 an employer representative ceases to hold the office, employment or membership of the body on which their appointment relied; and/or
 - 5.2.5 a Member ceases to represent their Division.

6. Recruitment process and term lengths

Elected Member Representatives

6.1 Members elected from both Administering Authority and Swindon Borough Council will be appointed by Wiltshire Council's Full Council. Full Council should consider their appointments in terms of the Member's relevant experience of pension related matters and their willingness to exercise this specific function on behalf of the Administering Authority.

Employer Representatives

6.2 The voting Employer Representatives will serve a four-year fixed term from appointment. On expiry of the four-year term, applications for the position will be sought (from the incumbent and other applicable employer bodies) and an appointment process will be undertaken by the Committee. Should more than one application be received for the role, appointment will be made by interview.

6.3 All members may be re-appointed following a four-year term and for subsequent terms.

Non-voting Employee Representatives

- 6.4 Representatives will be sought from the recognised Trade Union bodies and be reviewed by the Unions after the representative has served a four-year fixed term from appointment. On completion of the review the Union may choose whether to put forward the same representative or choose to appoint another representative from one of their number.
- 6.5 For non-elected member representatives and employer representatives, appointments shall be made as follows:
 - 6.5.1 Nominations will be initially sought in a manner which seeks to fairly reflect the Scheme employers and membership of the Fund, however where no nominations are initially received, further requests for nominations can be sought from any appropriate representative;
 - 6.5.2 Successful nominations will be invited to interview by a panel of Committee members and Pension Fund officers; and
 - 6.5.3 Successful interviewees will be recommended to Full Council for approval and invited to become a member.
- 6.6 All representatives should be able to demonstrate their capacity to attend and complete the necessary preparation for meetings and participate in training as required.

7. Appointment of Chairman, Vice Chairman and Substitute Members

- 7.1 The Administering Authority will administer the appointment process of the Chairman, Vice Chairman and Substitute Members.
- 7.2 Full Council will appoint a Chairman and Vice Chairman annually. The appointment of these roles will consider each individual's knowledge and understanding of pensions including any relevant professional qualification that the Members may hold.
- 7.3 Substitute members Full Council will appoint substitute members as required in accordance with Part 4 of the Constitution giving consideration to each individual's knowledge and understanding of pensions including any relevant professional qualification that the Members may hold.

8. Notification of appointment

- 8.1 When appointments to the Committee have been made the Administering Authority shall publish the name of Committee member.
- 8.2 Appointments are not required under the Public Services Pension Act 2013 (formerly Pension Act 2004 section 248a) to maintain a sufficient level of knowledge and understanding. However, it is expected that good practice will be followed, in so far that appointees will abide by the requirements specified in the Pension Regulator's code of practice 14 and the Pension Act 2004 sections 247 to 249.
- 8.3 It is expected that Members' knowledge and understanding will enable them to continue to comply with the FCA's MiFID II Regulations (or as amended from time to time) in relation to the Fund's professional investor status.

9. Duties of the Chairman

The Chairman:

- 9.1 Shall ensure the Committee delivers its purpose as set out in these Terms of Reference and all relevant legislation.
- 9.2 Shall ensure that meetings are productive and effective, and that opportunity is provided for the views of all members to be expressed and considered.

10. Meetings

- 10.1 Meetings of the Committee will be scheduled at least eight times a year.
- 10.2 The Pension committee and any sub-committee will follow those parts of the Council procedure rules set out in Part 4 of Wiltshire Council's constitution except where otherwise set out in this Protocol 2A.

11. Quorum and Access

- 11.1 A meeting is only quorate when at least 25% of voting members are present, subject to a minimum of 3.
- 11.2 A meeting that becomes inquorate may continue but any decisions will be non-binding.

Public Access to Committee meetings and information

11.3 For the avoidance of doubt Part 5 of Wiltshire Council's constitution reflects the current statutory requirements set out in Section 100 Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. These rules apply to the Pensions Committee or any sub-committee except where any particular issue is governed by other specific legislation.

12. Functions of the Committee

- 12.1 The Committee exercises the functions of the Council as Administering Authority. To fulfil its functions the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee will operate within a framework of key Governance and Compliance documents which it will ensure are maintained.
- 12.2 The key documents are:
 - 12.2.1 Governance Compliance Statement;
 - 12.2.2 Funding Strategy Statement;
 - 12.2.3 Investment Strategy Statement;
 - 12.2.4 Administering Authority Discretions Policy;
 - 12.2.5 Stewardship Code Statement;
 - 12.2.6 Communications Strategy;
 - 12.2.7 Business Plan;
 - 12.2.8 Administration Strategy;
 - 12.2.9 Cessations Policy; and
 - 12.2.10 Annual Report and Accounts.
- 12.3 The Committee shall be responsible for approving:

- 12.3.1 The Fund's budget;
- 12.3.2 The Triennial Valuation's key assumptions and results in relation to the Pension Fund; and
- 12.3.3 For reviewing and approving the Annual Report and Accounts for final approval by the Audit Committee and Governance Committee.

13. Delegations

- 13.1 Authority is delegated to the Treasurer of the Fund (or their nominated representative) to conduct urgent business between meetings, in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee. Any business conducted in this manner must be reported to the next ordinary meeting of the Committee. The scope of delegation is laid out in the scheme of sub-delegations document.
- 13.2 Authority is delegated to the Chairman to cast a Shareholder Vote in respect of Special Reserve Matters pertaining to Brunel Pension Partnership, following consultation with Pension Fund Officers and members of the Committee, where there is urgent business to be conducted between meetings.
- 13.3 Authority is delegated to the Head of Wiltshire Pension Fund to prepare the Fund's budgets, although approval of the budget shall remain with the Committee.

14. Reporting

- 14.1 Giving consideration to relevant law and good governance practice the Committee will:
 - 14.1.1 Publish a meetings attendance record in the Annual Report and Accounts;
 - 14.1.2 Invite the Local Pension Board to input into matters of governance and administration; and
 - 14.1.3 Report to the Local Pension Board on action(s) it has taken concerning the Board recommendations.

PROTOCOL 2B: TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE LOCAL PENSION BOARD OF WILTSHIRE COUNCIL

1. Introduction

- 1.1 This document sets out the Terms of Reference of the Local Pension Board of Wiltshire Council (the "Administering Authority") being a scheme manager as defined under Section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The Local Pension Board (the "Board") is established under Section 5 of that Act and Regulation 106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended).
- 1.2 The Board is established by the Administering Authority and operates independently of the Committee. Relevant information about its creation and operation are contained in these Terms of Reference.
- 1.3 The Board is not a committee constituted under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 and therefore no general duties, responsibilities or powers assigned to such committees or to any sub-committees or officers under the constitution, or scheme of delegation of the Administering Authority apply to the Board unless expressly included in this document.
- 1.4 Except where approval has been granted under Regulation 106(2) of the Regulations the Board shall be constituted separately from any committee or sub-committee constituted under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 with delegated authority to execute the function of the Administering Authority.

2. Interpretation

- 2.1 The following terms have the meanings as outlined below:
 - 2.1.1 'the Act' The Public Service Pensions Act 2013.
 - 2.1.2 'the Code' means the Pension Regulator's Code of Practice No 14 governance and administration of public service pension schemes and any successor Codes of Practice.
 - 2.1.3 **'the Committee'** means the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee which has delegated decision making powers for the Fund in accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972.
 - 2.1.4 **'the Fund'** means the Wiltshire Pension Fund managed and administered by the Administering Authority.
 - 2.1.5 **'the Guidance'** means the guidance on the creation and operation of local pension boards issued by the Scheme Advisory Board.
 - 2.1.6 'the Regulations' means the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended from time to time), the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended from time to time) including any earlier regulations as defined in these regulations to the extent they remain applicable and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended from time to time).
 - 2.1.7 **'Relevant Legislation'** means relevant overriding legislation as well as the Pension Regulator's Codes of Practice as they apply to the Administering

- Authority and the Board notwithstanding that the Codes of Practice are not legislation.
- 2.1.8 **'the Scheme'** means the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales.
- 2.1.9 'Other Member' means a person who does not have a pre-existing employment, financial or other material interest in either the Administering Authority or any scheme employer in the Fund and is not a consultant or adviser of the Fund in the last 5 years from the date of the advertisement and they are not a member of the Fund or a Wiltshire Member. Membership is defined as any status holding an existing liability.

3. Statement of purpose

- 3.1 The purpose of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in its role as a scheme manager of the Scheme.
- 3.2 Such assistance is to:
 - 3.2.1 monitor compliance with the Regulations, any other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the Scheme, and requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme; and
 - 3.2.2 (b) to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Scheme.

4. Duties of the Board

4.1 The Board should always act in a reasonable manner in the conduct of its purpose. In support of this duty all Board members shall make declarations on the register of interests of the Administering Authority in accordance with its Code of Conduct.

5. Establishment

5.1 The Board was established on 1 April 2015 after approval by Full Council at its meeting on 24 February 2015 (minute 22).

6. Membership

- 6.1 The Board shall consist of 6 voting members, as follows:
 - 6.1.1 3 Member Representatives (as set out in paragraph 7.1 and appointed in accordance with paragraphs 7.6-7.11 below); and
 - 6.1.2 3 Employer Representatives (as set out in paragraph 7.12 and appointed in accordance with paragraphs 7.13-7.22 below).
- 6.2 There shall be an equal number of Member and Employer Representatives.
- 6.3 There shall also be an independent chairman who is not entitled to vote.
- 6.4 The Board will also have access to an independent governance adviser.

7. Member representatives

7.1 Member representatives shall either be scheme members or have capacity to represent scheme members of the Fund. At least one-member representative should be an active member of the Wiltshire Pension Fund.

- 7.2 Member representatives should be able to demonstrate their capacity to attend and complete the necessary preparation for meetings and participate in training as required.
- 7.3 Substitutes shall not be appointed.
- 7.4 The 3-member representatives shall be appointed following a transparent recruitment process. Of these a minimum of 1-member representative and a maximum of 2-member representatives shall be nominated from a recognised trade union.
- 7.5 At least 1-member representative position should be open to all Fund members and be approved by the Administering Authority (rather than the Committee) based on the process outlined below.

For the member representatives:

- 7.6 The Administering Authority (rather than the Committee) will administer the appointment process as follows.
- 7.7 The Administering Authority shall advertise the member representative role, including information on where to access a nomination pack for each of the 3-member groups. The Administering Authority shall also notify all employer organisations and registered trade unions in writing of the vacancies, including information on where to access a nomination pack for each of the member groups. The nomination pack will include these Terms of Reference, details of the member representative role, a nomination form and instructions for application. The Administering Authority anticipates that any nominations it receives for a trade union representative will have also compiled with that trade union's nomination process. The closing date for receipt of nominations by the Administering Authority will initially be four weeks from the date of advertisement or notice, but where subsequent rounds of nomination are sought this period can alter, as legitimate circumstances dictate.
- 7.8 The Administering Authority's Director, Legal and Governance, and the Administering Authority's Corporate Director, Resources (or their nominated representatives) will score all nominations returned by the deadline against criteria relating to each nominee's ability to meet the capacity requirements of the role, to produce a shortlist.
- 7.9 Should there be more applications from candidates able to fulfil all the criteria of the role than the number of vacancies available, an election process will take place during which all active members of the Fund will be asked to cast one vote based on a brief biography published for each candidate for the non-trade union nominated member representative role(s). The candidate with the highest number of votes will be recommended to Full Council. In the event of a tie the candidate with the highest score at the shortlisting stage will be recommended.
- 7.10 Where no nominations are submitted in the initial round of advertising for a role, one subsequent request for nominations will be made to the relevant member group and if there is still no success, an advert to the wider member group will take place regardless of their trade union membership, or if they are an active or non-active scheme member. If suitable nominations are still not received, Pension Fund Officers will be entitled to approach suitable individuals who they believe may be suitable members to serve a term of office on behalf of a member group. Approval of a suitable Protocol 2

individual will be required from Administering Authority's Director, Legal and Governance, and the Administering Authority's Corporate Director, Resources (or their nominated representatives). A recommendation will then be made to Full Council for the appointment to the Board.

7.11 Full Council/the Standards Committee on behalf of the Council will appoint the member representative(s) of the Board.

For the Employer representatives

- 7.12 Employer representatives shall be suitable office holders of employers within the Fund or have experience of representing scheme employers in a similar capacity. No officer of Wiltshire Council who is responsible for the discharge of any function of the Administering Authority under the Regulations may serve as a member of the Board.
- 7.13 Employer representatives should be able to demonstrate their capacity to attend and complete the necessary preparation for meetings and participate in training as required.
- 7.14 Substitutes shall not be appointed.
- 7.15 The employer representative(s) shall be appointed following a transparent recruitment process which should be open to all employer organisations and be approved by the Administering Authority (rather than the Committee) based on the process outlined below.
- 7.16 The Administering Authority (rather than the Committee) will administer the appointment process as follows.
- 7.17 To ensure that the employer representative(s) are truly representative of the employer organisations within the Fund, whilst also being given equal opportunity for nomination, employer organisations within the Fund will be divided into three groups based on organisation size (by number of employees) for nomination purposes:
 - 7.17.1 Group 1: Wiltshire Council:
 - 7.17.2 Group 2: Swindon Borough Council and Wiltshire Police; and
 - 7.17.3 Group 3: all other employer organisations within the Fund.
- 7.18 The Administering Authority shall publish information on where to access a nomination pack for each employer group. The nomination pack will include these Terms of Reference, details of the employer representative role, a nomination form and instructions for application. Each employer within the group will be invited to put forward one suitable nominee using the prescribed nomination form, which must be returned to the Administering Authority within four weeks of the date of the invitation. However, where subsequent rounds of nomination are sought this period can be altered, as legitimate circumstances dictate.
- 7.19 The Administering Authority's Director, Legal and Governance, and the Administering Authority's Corporate Director, Resources (or their nominated representatives) will score the nomination(s) returned by the deadline against criteria relating to each nominee's ability to meet the capacity requirements of the role, to produce a shortlist of nominees from an employer group.

- 7.20 Should there be more applications from candidates able to fulfil all the criteria of the role than the number of vacancies available, an election process will take place during which all employer organisations of the Fund will be asked to cast one vote based on a brief biography published for each candidate. The candidate with the highest number of votes will be recommended to Full Council. In the event of a tie the candidate with the highest score at the shortlisting stage will be recommended.
- 7.21 Where no nominations are submitted in the initial round of advertising the role, one subsequent request for nominations will be made to the relevant employer group, following which a third request will be made to the wider employer group. If suitable nominations are still not received Pension Fund Officers will be entitled to approach employer representatives who they believe may be suitable representatives to serve a term of office on behalf of an employer group.
- 7.22 Full Council/the Standards Committee on behalf of the Council will appoint the employer representative(s) of the Board.

Other Members

- 7.23 One other member shall be appointed to the Board to act as independent chair by the agreement of both the Administering Authority and the Board.
- 7.24 Other members do not have voting rights on the Board.

8. Appointment of chair

- 8.1 The Administering Authority (rather than the Committee) will administer the appointment process as follows.
- 8.2 The independent chair shall be appointed by the Administering Authority but shall count as an 'Other' member under paragraphs 7.23-7.24 above.
- 8.3 The Administering Authority shall advertise the role of chair on the Fund website, the Wiltshire Council job vacancy website and such other appropriate media as it thinks fit, including information on where to access a nomination pack. The nomination pack will include these Terms of Reference, details of the role or chair, a nomination formand instructions for application. The closing date for receipt of nominations by the Administering Authority will be four weeks from the date of advertisement. However, where subsequent rounds of nomination are sought this period can be altered, as legitimate circumstances dictate.
- 8.4 The Administering Authority will score all nominations returned by the deadline against criteria relating to each nominee's ability to meet the relevant experience and capacity requirements of the role, to produce a shortlist of nominees.
- 8.5 Shortlisted nominees will be invited to an interview by the Administering Authority's Director, Legal and Governance, and the Administering Authority's Corporate Director, Resources (or their nominated representatives). A recommendation will then be made to Full Council/the Standards Committee on behalf of the Council for the appointment of the chair to the Board based on criteria relating to ability to meet the experience and capacity requirements of the role.

- 8.6 Full Council will ratify the chair to the Board. However, the appointment of the chair shall be subject to the passing of a motion to confirm by a majority of the employer and member representatives of the Board.
- 8.7 The Board will appoint the vice chair from amongst its remaining voting members, alternating on an annual basis between an employer representative and a member representative.

9. Duties of chair

- 9.1 The chair of the Board:
 - 9.1.1 Shall ensure the Board delivers its purpose as set out in these Terms of Reference;
 - 9.1.2 Shall ensure that meetings are productive and effective and that opportunity is provided for the views of all members to be expressed and considered; and
 - 9.1.3 Shall seek to reach consensus and ensure that decisions are properly put to a vote and won by a simple majority where consensus cannot be reached. Instances of a failure to reach a consensus position will be recorded and published.

10. Independent governance adviser

- 10.1 The Administering Authority will procure the services of the independent governance adviser in accordance with Part 11 of the Administering Authority's constitution, having regard to the best interests of the purpose of the Fund. The role will be re-tendered periodically and be consistent with the wider procurement strategy of the Fund as a whole.
- 10.2 In this respect the term independent means having no current employment, contractual, financial or other material interest in either Wiltshire Council or any scheme employer in the Fund other than for this role; and not being a member of the LGPS in the Fund.

11. Notification of appointments

11.1 When appointments to the Board have been made the Administering Authority shall publish the name of Board members, the process followed in their appointment together with the way in which the appointments support the effective delivery of the purpose of the Board.

12. Terms of Office

- 12.1 The term of office for Board members is 4 years.
- 12.2 On completion of a Board member's term the nomination process will be undertaken as outlined above and incumbents may seek re-appointment as part of this process. However, an extension to terms of office may be made by the Administering Authority with the agreement of the Board.
- 12.3 Board membership may be terminated prior to the end of the term of office if:
 - 12.3.1 there exists a conflict of interest in relation to a Board member which cannot be managed within the internal procedures of the Board;
 - 12.3.2 a Board member becomes incapable of acting;

- 12.3.3 a Board member becomes responsible for the discharge of any function of the Administering Authority under the Regulations (apart from any function relating to Local Pension Boards or the Scheme Advisory Board), for instance by being appointed to the Committee or accepting employment in relation to the Fund:
- 12.3.4 a Board member resigns;
- 12.3.5 a member representative ceases to be a member of the body or scheme on which their appointment relied;
- 12.3.6 an employer representative ceases to hold the office, employment or membership of the body on which their appointment relied;
- 12.3.7 a Member ceases to represent their constituency; or
- 12.3.8 the Administering Authority (at its sole discretion) determines that a member is no longer able to demonstrate his or her capacity to attend and prepare for meetings or to participate in required training

13. Conflicts of interest

- 13.1 All members of the Board must declare to the Administering Authority on appointment and at any such time as their circumstances change, any potential conflict of interest arising because of their position on the Board.
- 13.2 A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is likely to prejudice a person's exercise of functions as a member of the Board. It does not include a financial or other interest arising merely by that person being a member of the Scheme.
- 13.3 On each appointment to the Board and following any subsequent declaration of potential conflict, the Administering Authority shall ensure that any potential conflict is effectively managed in line with the internal procedures of the Administering Authority, the requirements of the Act, the requirements of the Code and the requirements of Relevant Legislation on conflict of interest for Board members.

14. Knowledge and understanding (including Training)

- 14.1 Knowledge and understanding must be considered in light of the role of the Board to assist the Administering Authority with the requirements outlined in paragraph 3 above. The Board shall establish and maintain a Knowledge and Understanding Policy and Framework to address the knowledge and understanding requirements that apply to Board members under the Act.
- 14.2 Board members shall attend and participate in training arranged to meet and maintain the requirements set out in the Board's Knowledge and Understanding Policy and Framework.
- 14.3 Board members shall participate in such personal training needs analysis or other processes that are put in place to ensure that they maintain the required level of knowledge and understanding to carry out their role on the Board.
- 14.4 Failure to attend training or participate in the processes referred to above may lead to removal from the Board.

15. Meetings

15.1 Meetings of the Board will be held at least four times a year.

- 15.2 The Board will meet at the Administering Authority's main offices, or another location to be agreed by the chair. Meetings will be held during normal working hours at times to be agreed by the chair.
- 15.3 The chair of the Board may call additional meetings with the consent of voting members of the Board. Urgent business of the Board between meetings may, in exceptional circumstances, be conducted via communications between members of the Board including telephone conferencing and emails.

16. Quorum

- 16.1 A meeting is only quorate when at least 50% of voting members are present and with at least one scheme member and employer member representative present.
- 16.2 A meeting that becomes inquorate may continue but any decisions will be non-binding.

17. Board administration

- 17.1 The chair shall agree with the Administering Authority's Democratic Services team (the 'Board Secretary') an agenda prior to each Board meeting.
- 17.2 The agenda and supporting papers will be issued at least 5 working days in advance of the meeting except in the case of matters of urgency.
- 17.3 Draft minutes of each meeting including all actions and agreements will be recorded and circulated to all Board members within 10 working days after the meeting. These draft minutes will be subject to formal agreement by the Board at their next meeting. Any decisions made by the Board should be noted in the minutes and in addition where the Board was unable to reach a decision such occasions should also be noted in the minutes.
- 17.4 The minutes may with the agreement of the Board, be edited to exclude items on the grounds that they would either involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 or it being confidential for the purposes of Section 100A(2) of that Act and/or they represent data covered by the Data Protection Act 2018.
- 17.5 The Board Secretary shall ensure that Board members meet and maintain the knowledge and understanding as determined in the Board's Knowledge and Understanding Policy and Framework and other guidance or legislation.
- 17.6 The Board Secretary shall ensure an attendance record is maintained along with advising the Administering Authority on allowances and expenses to be paid under these terms.
- 17.7 The Board Secretary shall liaise with the Administering Authority on the requirements of the Board, including advanced notice for officers to attend and arranging dates and times of Board meetings.

18. Public access to Board meetings and information

18.1 The Board meetings will be open to the public (unless there is an exemption under relevant legislation which would preclude part (or all) of the meeting from being open to the public). The Board is subject to the Access to Information Procedure Rules in

- Part 5 of the Administering Authority's constitution and the publication requirements of the Act.
- 18.2 The following will be entitled to attend Board meetings in an observer capacity, and may speak with the permission of the chair:
 - 18.2.1 Members of the Board:
 - 18.2.2 The Administering Authority's Corporate Director, Resources
 - 18.2.3 The Administering Authority's Pensions Administration Lead;
 - 18.2.4 The Administering Authority's Head of Wiltshire Pension Fund;
 - 18.2.5 The Administering Authority's Fund Governance and Performance Manager;
 - 18.2.6 The Administering Authority's Cabinet Member for finance; and
 - 18.2.7 Any person requested to attend by the Board.
- 18.3 In accordance with the Act the Administering Authority shall publish information about the Board to include:
 - 18.3.1 The names of Board members.
 - 18.3.2 The representation of employers and members on the Board.
 - 18.3.3 The role of the Board.
 - 18.3.4 These Terms of Reference.
- 18.4 The Administering Authority shall also publish other information about the Board including:
 - 18.4.1 Agendas and minutes
 - 18.4.2 Training and attendance logs
 - 18.4.3 An annual report on the work of the Board to be included in the Fund's own annual report.
- 18.5 All or some of this information may be published using the following means or other means as considered appropriate from time to time:
 - 18.5.1 On the Fund's website.
 - 18.5.2 As part of the Fund's Annual Report.
 - 18.5.3 As part of the Governance Compliance Statement.
- 18.6 Information may be excluded on the grounds that it would either involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 or it being confidential for the purposes of Section 100A (2) of that Act and/or they represent data covered by the Data Protection Act 2018.

19. Expenses and allowances

- 19.1 Any Wiltshire Member appointed to the Board will be entitled to receive expenses in accordance with the Administering Authority's constitution (Members' Allowance Scheme).
- 19.2 The independent governance adviser will be paid in accordance with the contract concluded with the Administering Authority.

19.3 Allowances and reimbursement of expenses for all non-Wiltshire Member members of the Board will be decided by the Administering Authority.

20. Budget

- 20.1 The expenses of the Board falls as a cost to the Fund. Therefore, the Committee will, via its delegation from Full Council, approve the allocation of an annual budget for the Board which is adequate to fulfil its role as part of its budget setting process. The budget will be managed by and at the discretion of the Board.
- 20.2 The budget shall allow for:
 - 20.2.1 accommodation and administrative support to conduct its meetings and other business;
 - 20.2.2 training;
 - 20.2.3 legal, technical and other professional advice; and
 - 20.2.4 other contractual arrangements, as approved by Committee as part of the annual budget.
- 20.3 The Board may make requests to the Administering Authority's Corporate Director, Resources, to approve any additional expenditure required to fulfil its obligations which will then be charged to the Fund budget.

21. Functions

- 21.1 The first function of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in securing compliance with the Regulations, other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the Scheme and requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme. Within the extent of this function the Board may determine the areas it wishes to consider including but not restricted to:
 - 21.1.1 Regular compliance monitoring of reports which shall include reports to and decisions made by the Committee, under the Regulations;
 - 21.1.2 Management, administrative and governance processes and procedures to ensure that they remain compliant with the Regulations, Relevant Legislation and in particular the Code;
 - 21.1.3 The compliance of scheme employers with their duties under the Regulations and Relevant Legislation:
 - 21.1.4 Reviewing such documentation as is required by the Regulations including the Governance Compliance Statement, Funding Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy Statement;
 - 21.1.5 Reviewing scheme members and employers' communications as required by the Regulations and Relevant Legislation;
 - 21.1.6 Monitoring complaints and performance on the administration and governance of the scheme.
 - 21.1.7 The Internal Dispute Resolution Process;
 - 21.1.8 Pensions Ombudsman cases;
 - 21.1.9 The arrangements for the training of Board members and those elected members and officers with delegated responsibilities for the management and administration of the Scheme;
 - 21.1.10 The complete and proper exercise of employer and administering authority discretions.
 - 21.1.11 The outcome of internal and external audit reports;
 - 21.1.12 The draft accounts and Fund annual report.

- 21.2 The second function of the Board is to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Scheme. Within the extent of this function the Board may determine the areas it wishes to consider including but not restricted to:
 - 21.2.1 Monitor performance of administration, governance and investments against key performance targets and indicators.
 - 21.2.2 Review the effectiveness of processes for the appointment of advisors and suppliers to the Administering Authority.
 - 21.2.3 Monitor investment costs including custodian and transaction costs.
 - 21.2.4 Monitor internal and external audit reports.
 - 21.2.5 Review of the risk register as it relates to the scheme manager function of the Administering Authority.
 - 21.2.6 Review the outcome of actuarial reporting and valuations.
 - 21.2.7 Provide advice and make recommendations when required to the Committee on areas that may improve the effectiveness and efficient operation and governance of the Fund.
- 21.3 In support of its functions the Board may make a request for information to the Committee regarding any aspect of the Administering Authority's function. Any such request should be complied with where reasonable both in scope and timing.
- 21.4 The Board may make recommendations to the Committee which should be considered, and a response made to the Board on the outcome within a reasonable period.

22. Reporting

- 22.1 The Board is accountable solely to the Administering Authority for the operation of its functions.
- 22.2 The Board will submit reports to the Committee as often as the Board deems necessary, typically through the minutes of its meetings. The Board should also report its requests, recommendations or concerns to the Committee. In support of this any member of the Board may attend a Committee meeting as an observer.
- 22.3 The Board should report any concerns over a decision made by the Committee to the Committee subject to the agreement of at least 50% of voting Board (as detailed in paragraph 16.1)
- 22.4 The Local Pension Board via its annual report will detail its work over the preceding 12 months. Such reports will include:
 - 22.4.1 a summary of the work undertaken since the last report;
 - 22.4.2 the work plan for last year and the programme for the next 12 months;
 - 22.4.3 areas raised to the Board to be investigated since the last report and how they were dealt with;
 - 22.4.4 details of training received since the last report and planned;
 - 22.4.5 details of all expenses and costs incurred over the past 12 months and projected for the next year; and
 - 22.4.6 details of any conflicts of interest identified since the last report and how they were dealt with.

- 22.5 On receipt of a report under paragraph 22.2 and 22.3 above the Committee should, within a reasonable period, consider and respond to the Board.
- 22.6 Where the Board is not satisfied with the response received it may request that a notice of its concern be placed on the website and in the Fund's annual report.
- 22.7 Where the Board is satisfied that there has been a breach of regulation which has been reported to the Committee under paragraph 22.2 and 22.3 and has not been rectified within a reasonable period the Board is under an obligation to escalate the breach.
- 22.8 The appropriate internal route for escalation is to the Administering Authority's Corporate Director, Resources, as the Section 151 Officer.
- 22.9 The Board may report concerns to the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board for consideration after, but not instead of, using the appropriate internal route for escalation.
- 22.10 Board members are also subject to the requirements to report breaches of law under the Act and the Code and the whistleblowing provisions set out in the Administering Authority's whistle blowing policy.

23. Review of Terms of Reference

- 23.1 These Terms of Reference shall be reviewed on each material change to those parts of the Regulations and relevant scheme guidance covering Local Pension Boards and at least every 5 years.
- 23.2 These Terms of Reference were last reviewed on 21 July 2020